00SEP 1t Pl 3: 10
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGHNCY //0- RITRCTION
. REGION 7 - REGIONAL BEARING CLERK
901 NORTH FIFTH STREET |
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS 66101

BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATOR

IN THE MATTER OF

RESER’S FINE FOODS, INC.
Pocket Nos.

- EPCRA-07-2009-0003,
CERCLA-)7-2000-0013

Respondent
Proceeding under Section 109 of CERCLA, _
42 U.8.C. § 9609, and Section 325 of
EPCRA, 42 US.C. § 11045
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| CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

The United Stgtes' Eﬁviromnentéi Protection Agency, Region 7 (EPA) and Reser’s Fi.ﬁe
Foods, Inc., Beaverton, Oregon {Respondent) have agreed to alsetﬂement of this action before
filing 2 complaint, and thus this action is simultaneously commenced and concluded pursuant to
Rules 22.13(b) and 22.18(B)(2) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance-of Corrective Action
Orders, and the Revocation, Termination or Susiaension of Permits (Cohsolidéted Rules)l, 40
CF.R. §§ 22.13(b), 22.18(b)(2). | |

| 'FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS
Jurisdiction
1. This is an administrative actioﬁ for the aséessment of civil perialties instituted

pursuant to Section 109 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and
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Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, 42 US.C. § 96d9’ and Section 325 of the Emergency
.Plannmg and Community Right-to~Know Act (EPCRA),42U.S.C. § 1 1045

2 This Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) serves as notice that EPA has
reason to beheve that Respondent has violated Sectmn 103 of CERCLA 42US.C. § 9603 and
the regulations promulgated pursuant to Sectzon 102 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9602, and
codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 302; and Section 304 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004, and the
régulatiéns §romi11gated pursuant to Section 328 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11048, and codified at
| - 40 CFR. Part 355. | |

Parties

3. The Complainant, by delegation from the 'Administrator of tfn? EPA, and the
Regional Administrator, EPA, Regibn 7, is the Director of the Ai;: and Wai%te Ménagement
Division, EPA, Region 7. |

4. The Respondent is Reser’s Fine Foods, Inc., located at 3167 SE 10" Street,
Topeka, Kansas 66607 Respondent is a corporation mcorporated in the State of Oregon and
reg1stered to do busmess m the State of Kansas |

Statu‘corv and Regulatory Regmremcnts

5. Section 103(a) of CERCLA and the régulation set forth at 40 CF.R. § 3026,
réquire any person inlchaxge ofa vgssél or an onshore or offshore facility, as soon as he has
| know}edge of a;ﬁy releasé (other than a federally permitted release) of a hazardous subs_.tance:l
: ffom such vessel or facility in quantities equal to or gréater than the reportable quantity - -
estébiished ioursuant to Section -1 02‘of CERCLA, to immediately notif.y the National' Resp.onse‘

Center of such release..
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6. Section 304(a) of EPCRA and the regulation set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 355.40,
chequire the owner or operator of a facility at whicﬁ a hazardous chemical is produced, used, or
stored and at which there is a release of a reportable quantity of any EPCRA éxtremely |
hazardoussubsténoe or CERCLA‘hazardous substance to immediately notify the State
Emergency Respﬁnse Commission of any State likely to be affected by the release and the
*emergency coordinator for the Local Emergency Plaiming',(lommiﬁee for any area likely to be
affected b}; the release.

7. Section ‘109(b)(1) of CERCLA authorizés a c_ivil penalty of not more than
$25,006 per day for each day d{iring which a violation continues for any violation of the -
requ_irements of Section 103(a) of CERCLA. Section 109(1))(1) of CERCLA, as amended by the
Debf Collection hnprové;nent Act of 1996, authofizes the United States to commence an a.ction
to assess civil penalties of not more than $27,500 per day for each violéti‘qn that dccurs aftér
January 30, 1997, through March 15, 2004; and $32,500 per day for each violétion that occurs
" after March 15, 2000

8. Section 325(b)(2) of EPCRA authorizes a civil penalty for violations of the
fequi.i'ements of Section 304 of RPCRA of not more than $25,000 per day for each day during
which the violation continues. Sécﬁon 325(b).(2) of EPCRA, as amended by the DethCollection
- Improvement Act of 1996, autlhorizes the United States to commence an action o z{ssess civil
penalties of not rhore than $ﬁ7,500 per day for each violation that occurs after J anuaty 30, 1997,
through March 15, 2004; and $32,500 per day for each violation that occurs aﬁer

March 15, 2004,
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Alleged Violations

9, EPA alleges that Respondent has violated CERCLA Section 103 and EPCRA
Section 304, as follows:

10. | Respondent is, and at all times referred to herein, was a “person” as defined by EE
Section 101(21) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(21); and Section 329(7) of .EI’CRA, 42 US.C.

§ 11049(7). | |
.11, At all times relevant hereto, Respondent'évvmed_ and operated Reser’s Fine Foods; .
Inc., located at 3167 SE 10" Street, T;Opcka, Kansas 66607 (Respondént’s facility).~ As_ paft of
Respondent’s business, Respondent stores anhydrous.ammonia. |
12. Respondent’s faclhty is a facility as defined by Sectmn 101(9) of CERCLA and
Section 329(4) of EPCRA.

13.  Anhydrous arﬁmonia is a hazardous substance as defined by Section 101(14) of
CERCLA, with a reportable quantity of 100 pounds, as designated by 40 C.F.R. § 302.4.
Anhydrous ammonia is an extremely hazardoué substance, as defined by Section 329(3) 6f ,

- EPCRA, 42 U.S.'C. § 11049(3) and as designated pursuant fo Sec’tioﬁ 362(a) of BPCRA, 42
US.C.§ 11002(a) and lxsted in 40 C.F.R. Part 355, Appendix A.

14. At all times relevant hereto, hazardous chemicals as defined by Section 329(5) of '
EPCRA, 42 U.8.C. § 11049(5), were produced, used, or stored by Respondent’s facility.

15. Onorabout Il;ecember 19, 2007, there was a release of anhydréus ammonia from
‘ Respondent s facility in excess of the reportable quantity designated by 40 C.F.R. § 302.4,

Respondent had knowledge of the release on December 19, 2007.
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16.  Respondent did not immediately notify the National Response Center of thé
: release as soon as it had knowledge of the release.
17. Respbncient’s failure to notify the Nét'iohal Response Center of the release as soon
_ aslit had knowledge of th’e release is a violation of Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. |
§ 9603, and oi' the reqmrements of 40 CF.R. § 302 6.

18. Respondent did not 1mmed1ate1y notify the State Emergency Response
Commission or the Local Emergency Planning Comunittee of the release.

19. Res_pondent’s failure to immediately notifj the State Emergency Résponse
Commissidn and the Loqai Emergency Plagning Committee, of the release is a violation of
Section 304(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(b), and of thé requirements of 40 CER.

§ 355.40(b). -

CONSENT AGREEMENT .

20.  For purposés of this proceeding, Respondent admits the jurisdictioﬁal allegations
set forth above | |

21.  Respondent neither admits nor denies the factual allegations set forth above

22.  Respondent waives its right to a. judicial or administrative heating on any issue of
fact or law set forth above'. |

23, This CAFO resolves the vioiéﬁons set forth above, speciﬁcaily, the violations of
Section 103 of CERCLA and Section 304 of EPCRA for Respondent’s failure to immediately

report the- anhydrous ammonia releasc from Respondent’s facility on I}ecember 19, 2007,
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Responder;t and EPA agree to conciliate this maiter without the necessity of a formal hearix'lg.and
to bear their resﬁectiv_e costs and attorney's fees.

24.  Respondent consents to the issuance of the Final Order hereinafter recited and .
consents to the payment of the civil faenaity as set forth below.

+ 25. . Respondent understands that the failuré to pay any poﬁion of the civil penélty
assessed héréin in accordance with the provisions of this order may result in commencement ofa .
civil acttion in Federal District Court to recdver the tétal-penalty, together with interest at the
applicable statutory rate.

26.  Respondent certifies by the signing of this CAFO that to the best of its '
knowledge, Respondent’s facility is presently in compliance with alt requiren'ients of Section 103
of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603; and Section 304 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. §1 1004, and all
regulations promulgated th_eréundert

| 27. The effect of settlement ’déscribe'd in paragraph 23 above is conditional upon the
'acc;urac.y of the Respondent’s representations to EPA, as memorialized in paragraph 26 above, of
thés CAFO,

28, In settlement of this matter, Respondent agrees to complete the following
‘Supplemental Envi;on-mental Project (“SEP”), which the paltigs agree is intended to secure
significant envi;onm’entai and/or public health benefits. Respondent shall I;ixrohase'and donate
emergency response equipment 1o the Topeka Fire Department at a cost of not less than Twenty-
Two Thousand Six Hundred and Seventy-Nine Dollars ($22,67 9); in accp.rdance with the

Respondent’s SEP Work Plan (attaéhed hereto as Attachment A and incorporated by reference).
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The total expenditure for the SEP shall be not less than $22 679 and the SEP shall

be cornpleted no later ’chan 90 days from effective date of the Final Order Al! work tequired to

complete the SEP shaH be performed in comphance with ail federal, state, and local Iaws and

: regulations,

30.

Within thirty (30) days of corﬁpleticn of the SEP, Respondent shall submit a SEP

Conﬁalction Report to EPA, with a copy to the state agency identified below. The SEP

Corripletion Report shall contain the following:

(i) A detailed description of the SEP as implementéd;

(). Itemized costs, documented by copies.of purchase orders, receipts, or

canceled checks; and
(iii) The following certification signed by Respondent / Respondents or, if

Respondent is a corporation, an officer of the corporation"

I certify under penalty of law that I have examined and am familiar wzth the
information submitted in this document’ and all attachments and that, based on my
inquiry of those individuals immediately responsible for obtaining the
information, the information is true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that
there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the
p0551b111ty of fines and imprisonment,

All reports-shall be directed to the following:

3L

Patricia Reitz

. U.S. Environmental Protectmn Agency

Region 7
901 North 5 Street
Kansas City, Kansas 66101.

In itemizing its costs in the SEF’ Compietmn Report, Respondent shall ¢learly

identify and provide acéeptable documentation for all eligible SEP costs. Where the report
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mcludes costs not ehgable for SEP credit, those costs must be clearly identified as such. For
purposes of this paragraph, “acceptable documentation” mcludes invoices, purchase orders or
other documentation that specifically identifies and iternizes the individual costs of the goods
and/or services for which payment is being made. Canceled drafis do not constitute acceptable
documentation unless such drafts speciﬁcaliy ideritify and itemize the individual costs of the
goods and/or services for which payment is being made
32.  Respondent agrees to the payment of stlpulated penaltles as foliows: In the
event the Respondent fails to comply with any of the terms or prowsmns of this Consent
Agreement relating to the performance of the SEP as set forth in paragraph 28 of this CAFO
and/or to the extent that the actual expenditures of the SEP does not equal or exceed the cost of |
the SEP descrxbed in paragraphs 28 and 29 of this CAFO Respondent shall be liable for
st:pulated penalties according to the provisions set forth below:
" a. Except as provtded in subparagraph (11) and (iit) of this paragtaph if the SEP is

not completed satisfactorily and timely pursvant to the agreement set forth n

plareigraph 28 of this CAFO, Respondent shall be liable for and shéll pay a

stipulated penalty to the United States in the amount of 'fwenty—Seven

Thousand Two Hundréd and Fifteen Déllars ($27,215), minus any documented

expenditures determined by EPA to be acceptable for the SEP, t‘ot‘ a total equal

to 120% of the projeéted costs of the SEP.
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b. If Respondent fails to timely and completely submit the SEP Completion Report
required by paragmph 30, Respondent shall be liéble and shaﬁ} pay é stipulated

. penalty in the amount of Two Hundred and Fifty Déllars-($l250).

¢. If The SEP is not completed in accordance with pajfagraph 28 of this CAFO, but
EPA determines tiaat the Respondent: (aj made good faith and t;mely é_fforts to
complete the project; and (b} cértifies, with supporting documentation, that at
Iéast 90 percént of the amount of money which was required to be spent was
expended on the SEP, Respondent shall not ‘oe liable for any stipulated penalty

33. Stipulated penalties shail begin to accrue on the day after performance is due and
shall continue to accrue through the ‘ﬁnal day of the comp‘letion of the activity. |

| 34.  Respondent shall pay stipulated penglties not more than fifteen (15) days after
receipt of written den{and by EPA for such penalties. Method of payment shall be in accordance
with the provisidns of paragraph 1 of the Final Order portion of this CAFO.

35.  Respondent ceﬁiﬁes that it is not required to perform or develop the SEP by any
federal, state, or local law or regulat:on, nor is Respondent requu‘ed 1o perform or develop the
SEP by agreement, grant or as 111Junctwe rehef in this or any other case or {0 comply with state
or local requirements. Respondent further certifies that Respondent has not received, and is not
presen_ﬂy negotiating to receive, credit in any o’tﬁgf enforcement action for the SEP.

36.  For federal inéorﬁe tax purposes, Respondent agrees that it will neither capitalize

" into inventory or basis nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the SEP.
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37, Any public statement, oral or written, in print, ﬁim or other med‘ié, made by
Resppnde;lt making reference to the SEP shall include the following language:

“Tﬁis project was undertaken in connection with the settlement of an enforcement action
taken by the Umted States Enwronmentat Protectlon Agency.”

38.  Late Payment Prowsmns Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717, EPA is entitled to assess
interest and penaltics on debts owed to the United States and a charge to cover the cost of
processing and handling a deiinquent claim. Respondent understands that its failure to timely
péy any portion of the civil penalty described in paragraph 1 of the Final Order below or'any '
portion of a stxpulated penalty as stated in paragraph 32 above may result in the commencement
" of a civil action in Federal District Court to recover the fll remiaining balance, along ; w11h
penalties and accumulated mterest In such case, interest shall accrue thereon at the apphcablc
statutory rate on the unpaid balance untal such cml or stipulated penalty and any accrued mtercst
are paid i_n full. A late payment handling charge of Fifteen Dollars ($15) will be imposed after '
ihir'ty. 30 dajs and an additional $15 will be_ charge for each subseciuéni thirty (30) day period.
Additionally, as provided by 31 U.S.'C.. § 3717(e)(2), a six percent (6%) per anﬁum penalty (late
charge) may be assessed on ansr amount nét paid' within ninety (90) days of the due date. .

39.  Failure 1o pay the assessed p‘enaﬁy-may resul;t m the referral of this matter to the-
United States Department of Justice (DOJ) for cc.)llection. If payment is not received on or
before the due date, interest will be assessed at ti;e annual rate established by the Secretary of the
Preasury pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 The interest will be asséssed on the overdue amount

from the due date through the date of payment.
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. FINAL ORDER

Pursuant to the provisions of CERCLA, 42US.C. § 9601 and BPCRA, 42 US.C.
11001 and based upon the information set forth in the Consent Agreement IT 1S HERFBY
ORDERED THAT:

1. Respondent shall pay a civil penalty of Thirteen Th_buéand Four Hundred and
Sixty Dollars ($13,460), within sixty days of entry of this Final Order. Payment shall be by WO
cashier's or cerfified checks. The first check in the amount of Six Thousand Seven Hundred and
- Thiz;t‘y Dollars ($6,730) shall be made payable to the, "United States Treasury" and shall be
refnittéd to: | |

United State Environmental Protection Agency

Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

Post Office Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 63 197-9000

This payment shall reference docket number EPCRA-07-2009-0003.
The second check in the amount of Six Thousand Seven Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($6,730)
shall also be made payab}e to the “United States Treasury” and shall be remitted to

Umled State Environmental Pmtecuon Agency

Superfund Payments

Cincinnati Finance Center

Post Office Box 979076

- 8t. Louis, M1ssoun 63197-9000.

- This payment shall reference docket number CERCLA~{)7-2009~001 3.
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2. Acopyof each of the checks should be sent to:

* Kristen Nazar
Assistant Regional Counsel
U.8. Environmental Protection Agency Region 7
901 North 5th Street .
Kansas City, Kansas 66101

and

Kathy Robinson
Regional Hearing Clerk
EPA-Region 7

Office of Regional Counsel
901 North Fifth Street
Kansas City, Kansas 66101,

3, . . Respondent and Complainant shall bear their own costs-and attorneys’ fees

incurred as a result'of this matter.
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COMPLAINANT :
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL I’ROTECTION AGENCY

é%iii;aé . M}?/w4#“

atrick Bstos

hief .
Chesmical Risk Information Branch
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 7

mm

Kristen Nazar
Assistant Regional Counsel

"1J.8. Environmental Protection Agency

Region 7
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RESPONDENT: _
RESER’S FINE FOOTS{J2

ol
7
_ac | - | Name(?rinty' /A%/,{

Tile (7/%’/ //C(f)#/-e\\
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[T IS SO ORDERED. This Final Order shall become effective immediately.

Robert Pairick - Date
Regional Judicial Officer :



June 15, 2009

11.5: EPA, Region Vil . sent viar eleetronic mail
Attn: Kristen Nazar ‘ '

Office of Regional Counsel

001 North 5" Street

Kansas City, KS 66101 -

RE: Proposed Civil Penalty / Supplemental Environmental Project
Dear Ms. Nazar:

" Thank you for the opportunity to présehi yéu with this proposed Supplemental, Environmental
Project (SEP) as part of the Notice of Civil Penalty related to a December 19, 2007 anhydrous
ammonia refease. _ . .

“The intended rccipieﬁt for this pz‘éposed Supplemental Environmental Project is the Topeka Fire
Department. The contact we have been in touch with is Ronald L. Hufford. ‘

Proposed SEP _ ‘ . o
e ldentified Cost, $12.620 / Additional Cost Bstimate $11,000/ Total $23, 620

e 2 Mobile Data Terminals (per city IT ccvnfiguratiosxi Approximate price — $ 3,900 Per unit .
" e MDT mounting bardware for Haz-Mat & Tech Rescue Vehicles” Researching Priges.
o 120" Blectric Ventilation Fan (GFL Model) #720 VR2 ~ Retail price - $2,825
e 300" Cord reet and rated electrical cord (for use with ventilation fan) Researching Prices
e Communication Gear for high noise and voice activated use with our radio systein, Will peed
time to acquire and field test different systeims and manufacturea:é. ( for entry-and backup te_ains)_:
o  ADASHI First Response 3.0 (complete all-hazards incident information management solution for
first responders) ADASHI is certified as "Qualified Anti-Terrorism Technology" by the us:
_ Department of Horneland Security. . GSA: §1,995 MSRP: $2,075
Total Penalty Payment | | ' '
Cash: $12,707 ~
SEP: -$23,620 (at 80% $18,896)

Please review this proposal. I you require additional information, please contact me.
oo Sk

Linda M. Stock '

Risk Manager

cC. Michael Harding



Kriasten,

T just received the following information regarding the additional
monies anticipated to be spent as part of the SEP.

MOTGROLA Comport Systems —--- Part numbex/ NNTNélBGA -~~~ § units @
496.00 = 3968.00
MSA Helmet Communication System with radio .interface --- Part numbers/
MSA~10042802 & MEA-10042903 —-~~— 10 units @ 609.10 = 6091.00
Tota1‘10059.00 '
please include with original proposal. Please let me know iLf I need
to send you an email with just this information included.

' v

Linda
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final Order
was sent this day in the following manner to the addressees:

Copy hand delivered to
Attorney for Complainant:

Kristen Nazar

Assistant Regional Counsel

Region VII

United States Environmental Protection Agency
901 N. 5" Street

Kansas City, Kansas 66101

Copy by Certified Mail Return Receipt to:

Reser’s Fine Foods, Inc.
Linda M. Stock, Risk Manager

P.O. Box 8
Beaverton, Oregon 97075 -
Dated: ‘ Q\ :

J . J ' ' ‘
LY A

Kathy Robinkbn

Hearing Clerk, Region 7




